

# Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021

Version	Approved
1	SLT 25 March 2021 draft for endorsement
2	Velindre Integrated Governance Group 15 April 2021
3	Audit Committee 20 April 2021 for review
4	SSPC 20 May 2021 final for endorsement
5	SLT 27 May 2021 final for endorsement
6	Audit Committee 29 June 2021 for final approval

# **CONTENTS**

	Chapter	Page
1.	Scope of Responsibility	3
2.	Governance Framework	5
	2.1 Shared Services Partnership Committee (SSPC)	5
	2.2 Partnership Committee Performance and Self-	9
	Assessment	
	2.3 Velindre NHS Trust Audit Committee for NWSSP	10
	2.4 Reviewing Effectiveness of Audit Committee	12
	2.5 Sub Groups and Advisory Groups	13
_	2.6 The Senior Management Team (SMT)	14
3.	The System of Internal Control	15
	3.1 External Audit	15
	3.2 Internal Audit	16
	3.3 Counter Fraud Specialists	16 17
	3.4 Integrated Governance	17 17
	3.5 Quality 3.6 Looking Ahead	18
4.	Capacity to Handle Risk	18
5.	The Risk and Control Framework	20
٦.	5.1 Corporate Risk Register	20 21
	5.2 Policies and Procedures	22
	5.3 Information Governance	23
	5.4 Counter Fraud	25
	5.5 Internal Audit	25
	5.6 Integrated Medium-Term Plan (IMTP)	25
	5.7 Health and Care Standards	26
6.	Mandatory Disclosures	29
	6.1 Equality, Diversity and Human Rights	29
	6.2 Welsh Language	31
	6.3 Handling Complaints and Concerns	32
	6.4 Freedom of Information Requests	33
	6.5 Data Security	33
	6.6 ISO14001 -Sustainability and Carbon Reduction	33
	Delivery Plan	
	6.7 Business Continuity Planning/Emergency	34
	Preparedness	35
	6.8 UK Corporate Governance Code	35
-	6.9 NHS Pensions Scheme	
7.	Managing Director's Overall Review of Effectiveness	36

# **ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/2021**

#### 1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Throughout the 2020/21 financial year, NWSSP and NHS Wales faced unprecedented and increasing pressure in planning and providing services to meet the needs of those affected by COVID-19, whilst also maintaining its core activities and functions. NWSSP staff responded fantastically to the challenge, such that not only were no services stood down, but that a number of new services, including some well outside our traditional finance and transactional base, have been established.

One example of this is the Temporary Medicines Unit (TMU). The NWSSP TMU was inspected by the MHRA regulator in December 2020. After minor adjustments to meet the regulator's recommendations, the service opened on 25 January 2021. Since that date it has supplied Medicines to all the Health Boards with Acute Hospitals in Wales, meeting pressures and allowing other resources to be redeployed locally to best effect. The service acts as a wholesaler, purchasing bulk medicines and consumables, preparing them into ready to administer form under Aseptic conditions, and selling them onto the Health Boards for use, principally in their Critical Care Units. The service also continues to contribute towards the COVID-19 vaccine programme by supervising the packing and distribution of consumables packs to vaccination centres.

A further example has been in meeting the response to Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). The approach undertaken by NWSSP and others was comprehensively reviewed by Audit Wales, and their report was published in April 2021. The press release that accompanied it stated:

"Working collaboratively, NHS Shared Services and other public services overcame early challenges to provide health and care bodies with the required PPE without running out of stock at a national level.

The Welsh Government and NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership (Shared Services) procured and supplied Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for frontline staff in very challenging circumstances. They put good arrangements in place to manage risks which helped to avoid some of the problems reported in England".

The pandemic has meant NWSSP has had to work very differently both internally and with our staff, partners and stakeholders and it has been necessary to revise the way the governance and operational framework is discharged. In recognition of this, Dr Andrew Goodall, Director General Health and Social Services/NHS Wales Chief Executive wrote to all NHS Chief Executives in Wales, with regard to "COVID -19- Decision Making and Financial Guidance". The letter recognised that organisations would be likely to make potentially difficult decisions at pace and without a firm evidence base or the support of key individuals which under normal operating circumstances would be available. Nevertheless, the

organisation is still required to demonstrate that decision-making has been efficient and will stand the test of scrutiny with respect to compliance with Managing Welsh Public Money and demonstrating Value for Money after the COVID-19 crisis has abated and there is a return to more normal operating conditions.

To demonstrate this, NWSSP records how the effects of COVID-19 have impacted on any changes to normal decision-making processes. Where relevant these, and other actions taken have been explained within this Annual Governance Statement.

As Accounting Officer, the Managing Director has responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership's (NWSSP), and the host's (Velindre University NHS Trust) policies, aims and objectives. The Managing Director also safeguards the public funds and departmental assets for which he is personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him. The Managing Director is responsible for ensuring that NWSSP is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively.

Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. Effective governance is paramount to the successful and safe operation of NWSSP's services. This is achieved through a combination of "hard" systems and processes including standing orders, policies, protocols and processes; and "soft" characteristics of effective leadership and high standards of behaviour (Nolan principles).

The NWSSP Managing Director is accountable to the Shared Services Partnership Committee (Partnership Committee) in relation to those functions delegated to it. The Managing Director is also accountable to the Chief Executive of Velindre University NHS Trust (the Trust) in respect of the hosting arrangements supporting the operation of NWSSP.

The Chief Executive of the Trust is responsible for the overall performance of the executive functions of the Trust and is the designated Accountable Officer for the Trust. As the host organisation, the Chief Executive (and the Trust Board) has a legitimate interest in the activities of the Shared Services Partnership and has certain statutory responsibilities as the legal entity hosting NWSSP.

The Managing Director (as the Accountable Officer for NWSSP) and the Chief Executive of the Trust (as the Accountable Officer for the Trust) shall be responsible for meeting all the responsibilities of their roles, as set out in their respective Accountable Officer Memoranda. Both Accountable Officers co-operate with each other to ensure that full accountability for the activities of NWSSP and the Trust is afforded to the Welsh Government Ministers/Cabinet Secretary whilst minimising duplication.

The Governance Structure for NWSSP is presented in Figure 1 below:

Figure 1 –NWSSP's Governance Structure



Underpinned through the overarching Velindre University NHS Trust legal and assurance framework

During the year the Partnership Committee approved the establishment of a Quality & Safety Committee. The terms of reference for this Committee were approved by the Partnership Committee at its September 2020 meeting, and the new Committee will commence in 2020/21.

#### 2. GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

NWSSP currently has two main Committees that have key roles in relation to the Governance and Assurance Framework. Both Committees are chaired by Independent Members and undertake scrutiny, development discussions, and assess current risks and monitor performance in relation to the diverse number of services provided by NWSSP to NHS Wales.

# 2.1 Shared Services Partnership Committee

The Shared Services Partnership Committee (Partnership Committee) was established in accordance with the Velindre National Health Service Trust Shared Services Committee (Wales) Regulations 2012 and the functions of managing and providing shared services (professional, technical and administrative services) to the NHS in Wales is included within the Velindre National Health Service Trust (Establishment) (Amendment) Order 2012.

The composition of the Partnership Committee includes an Independent Chair, the Managing Director of Shared Services, and either the Chief Executive of each partner organisation in NHS Wales or a nominated executive representative who acts on behalf of the respective Health Board or Trust.

On 23 March 2020 the Welsh Government suspended all Ministerial Public Appointment campaigns with immediate effect. The tenure of the current Chair had been due to expire on 30 November 2020. Ordinarily, there is no

mechanism to extend the tenure of the Chair beyond eight years; however, to avoid operational and governance pressures Welsh Government progressed temporary amendments to the legislation to allow for an extended tenure. The term of office of the current Chair was therefore extended by 12 months to 30 November 2021, and this was approved at the May 2020 Partnership Committee.

At a local level, Health Boards and NHS Trusts in Wales must agree Standing Orders for the regulation of proceedings and business. They are designed to translate the statutory requirements set out within the Local Health Boards (Constitution, Membership and Procedures) (Wales) Regulations 2009, into day to day operating practice, and, together with the adoption of a scheme of matters reserved to the Board; a scheme of delegations to officers and others; and Standing Financial Instructions, they provide the regulatory framework for the business conduct of NWSSP and define its way of working. These documents, accompanied by relevant Trust policies and NWSSP's corporate protocols, approved by the SMT, provide NWSSP's Governance Framework.

Health Boards, NHS Trusts and Health Education and Improvement Wales (HEIW) have collaborated over the operational arrangements for the provision of shared services and have an agreed Memorandum of Cooperation to ensure that the arrangements operate effectively through collective decision making in accordance with the policy and strategy set out above, determined by the Partnership Committee.

Whilst the Partnership Committee acts on behalf of all NHS organisations in undertaking its functions, the responsibility for the exercise of NWSSP functions is a shared responsibility of all NHS bodies in Wales.

NWSSP's governance arrangements are summarised below.

Figure 2: Summary of Governance Arrangements



The Partnership Committee has in place a robust Governance and Accountability Framework for NWSSP including:

- · Standing Orders;
- Hosting Agreement;
- Interface Agreement between the Chief Executive Velindre University NHS Trust and Managing Director of NWSSP; and
- Accountability Agreement between the Partnership Committee and the Managing Director of NWSSP.

These documents, together with the Memorandum of Co-operation form the basis upon which the Partnership Committee's Governance and Accountability Framework is developed. Together with the Trust Values and Standards of Behaviour framework, this is designed to ensure the achievement of the standards of good governance set for the NHS in Wales.

The Membership of the Committee during the year ended 31 March 2021 is outlined in Figure 3 below. Membership was originally designed to be the Chief Executives of each Health Board and Trust but nominated deputies are allowed to attend and vote, provided they are an Executive Director of their own organisation.

Figure 3: Table of Members of the NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership Committee during 2020/2021

Name	Position	Organisation	Full/Part Year
Margaret Foster (Chair)	Independent Member	NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership	Full Year
Huw Thomas (Vice Chair )	Director of Finance	Hywel Dda UHB	Full Year
Neil Frow	Managing Director of NWSSP	NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership	Full Year
Kathryn Jones*	Director of Workforce and OD	Swansea Bay UHB	Part Year
Geraint Evans	Director of Workforce and OD	Aneurin Bevan UHB	Full Year
Sue Hill	Director of Finance	Betsi Cadwaladr UHB	Full Year
Catherine Phillips**	Director of Finance	Cardiff and Vale UHB	Part Year
Hywel Daniel Director of Workforce & OD		Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB	Full Year
Pete Hopgood	Director of Finance	Powys THB	Part Year
Helen Bushell  ***  Director of People		Public Health Wales NHS Trust	Part Year
Steve Ham Chief Executive		Velindre University NHS Trust	Full Year
Chris Turley	Chris Turley Director of Finance		Full Year
Non-Voting Me	mbers		
Eifion Williams	Director of Finance	HEIW	Full Year

<sup>\*</sup>Replaced Hazel Robinson, Director of Workforce & OD wef September 2020

The composition of the Committee also requires the attendance of the following: Deputy Director of Finance, Welsh Government, Director of Finance & Corporate Services, NWSSP, Director of Workforce & Organisational Development, and Board Secretary NWSSP as governance support. Trade Unions are also invited to the meetings.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Replaced Chris Lewis, Interim Director of Finance wef March 2021 who had replaced Bob Chadwick, Director of Finance wef September 2020

<sup>\*\*\*</sup> Replaced Phil Bushby, Director of People. Neither Phil Bushby or Helen Bushell are an Executive Director of PHW so they are unable to vote and don't count towards meeting quorum.

<u>Figure 4 – Attendance at the Meetings of the NHS Wales Shared Services</u> <u>Partnership Committee during 2020/2021</u>

Organisation	21/05/ 2020	23/07/ 2020	17/09/ 2020	19/11/ 2020	21/01/ 2021	18/03/ 2021
Aneurin Bevan UHB	<b>√</b>	<b>~</b>	×	×	<b>~</b>	<b>✓</b>
Betsi Cadwaladr UHB	✓	<b>√</b> **	<b>√</b> *	✓	<b>√</b> **	Х
Cardiff and Vale UHB	✓	×	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b> *	<b>√</b>
Cwm Taf UHB	✓	x	<b>✓</b>	x	<b>√</b> **	x
HEIW	×	×	<b>√</b> **	<b>√</b> **	<b>√</b> **	<b>√</b> **
Hywel Dda LHB	✓	✓	✓	<b>✓</b>	✓	✓
Powys Teaching Health Board	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Public Health Wales Trust	✓	Х	✓	Х	Х	✓
Swansea Bay UHB	✓	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b> **	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b> *	<b>√</b> **
Velindre NHS Trust	<b>✓</b>	x	<b>✓</b>	<b>√</b> *	x	<b>√</b> **
Welsh Ambulance Service Trust	✓	✓	✓	X	✓	<b>√</b>
Welsh Government	✓	<b>√</b>	✓	<b>√</b>	x	<b>√</b>
Trade Union	Х	✓	Х	✓	✓	✓
Chair	✓	✓	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	✓	✓
Accountable Officer	✓	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>

<sup>✓</sup> Denotes the nominated member was present

#### X Denotes Health Body not represented

No meetings of the Partnership Committee were cancelled during 2020/21 due to the pandemic but all meetings were held virtually. In accordance with the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 1960 the organisation is required to meet in public. As a result of the public health risk linked to the pandemic there have been limitations on public gatherings and has not

<sup>✓\*</sup>Denotes the nominated member was not present and that an alternative Executive Director attended on their behalf

<sup>✓\*\*</sup> Denotes that the nominated member was not present and that while a deputy did attend, they were not an Executive Member of their Board.

therefore been possible to allow the public to attend meetings of our board and committees during the year. We did not receive any requests from the public to attend the Partnership Committee but to ensure business was conducted in as open and transparent manner as possible during this time the following actions were taken:

- The dates of all Committee meetings are published on the NWSSP website prior to the start of the financial year;
- The agenda is published in English and Welsh at least seven days prior to the Committee meeting;
- All Committee papers are published in English on the website, and minutes are also provided in Welsh, shortly after the meeting has taken place.

The purpose of the Partnership Committee is set out below:

- To set the policy and strategy for NWSSP;
- To monitor the delivery of shared services through the Managing Director of NWSSP;
- To seek to improve the approach to delivering shared services which are effective, efficient and provide value for money for NHS Wales and Welsh Government;
- To ensure the efficient and effective leadership, direction, and control of NWSSP; and
- To ensure a strong focus on delivering savings that can be re-invested in direct patient care.

The Partnership Committee monitors performance monthly against key performance indicators. For any indicators assessed as being below target, reasons for current performance are identified and included in the report along with any remedial actions to improve performance. These are presented to the Partnership Committee by the relevant Director. Deep Dive sessions are a standing item on the agenda to learn more about the risks and issues of directorates within NWSSP.

The Partnership Committee ensures that NWSSP consistently followed the principles of good governance applicable to NHS organisations, including the oversight and development of systems and processes for financial control, organisational control, governance and risk management. The Partnership Committee assesses strategic and corporate risks through the Corporate Risk Register.

# 2.2 Partnership Committee Performance

During 2020/2021, the Partnership Committee approved an annual forward plan of business, including:

- Regular assessment and review of:
  - o Finance, Workforce and Performance information;
  - Corporate Risk Register;
  - Welsh Risk Pool;

- o Programme Management office updates.
- Annual review and/or approval of:
  - o Integrated Medium-Term Plan;
  - Annual Governance Statement;
  - Audit Wales Management Letter;
  - Annual Review;
  - Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions;
  - Health & Care Standards; and
  - Service Level Agreements.
- Deep Dives into:
  - o COVID-19 response;
  - PPE Winter Plan;
  - o BREXIT;
  - Scrutiny of Welsh Risk Pool Claims;
  - Medical Examiner Service;
  - Welsh Language; and
  - Health Courier Services.

#### 2.3 Velindre Audit Committee for NWSSP

The primary role of the Velindre University NHS Trust Audit Committee for Shared Services (Audit Committee) has been to review and report upon the adequacy and effective operation of NWSSP's overall governance and internal control system. This includes risk management, operational and compliance controls, together with the related assurances that underpin the delivery of NWSSP's objectives. This role is set out clearly in the Audit Committee's terms of reference, which were revised in October 2020 to ensure these key functions were embedded within the standing orders and governance arrangements.

The Audit Committee reviews the effective local operation of internal and external audit, as well as the Counter Fraud Service. In addition, it ensures that a professional relationship is maintained between the external and internal auditors so that assurance resource is effectively used.

The Audit Committee supports the Partnership Committee in its decision-making and in discharging its accountabilities for securing the achievement of NWSSP's objectives in accordance with the standards of good governance determined for the NHS in Wales.

The Committee attendees during 2020/2021 comprised of three Independent Members of Velindre University NHS Trust supported by representatives of both Internal and External Audit and Senior Officers of NWSSP and Velindre University NHS Trust.

<u>Figure 5 - Composition of the Velindre University NHS Trust Audit Committee for NWSSP during 2020/21</u>

In Attendance	April 2020	June 2020	October 2020	January 2021	Total
		ee Members			
Martin Veale, Chair & Independent Member	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>	✓	✓	4/4
Gareth Jones, Independent Member	✓	<b>✓</b>	✓	<b>✓</b>	4/4
Janet Pickles, Independent Member	<b>√</b>	<b>✓</b>	✓	х	3/4
	Audit	t Wales			
Audit Team Representative	✓	✓	✓	✓	4/4
	NWSSP A	udit Service			
Director of Audit & Assurance	<b>√</b>	<b>✓</b>	✓	<b>√</b>	4/4
Head of Internal Audit	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	✓	<b>√</b>	4/4
	Counter Fr	aud Service	5		
Local Counter Fraud Specialist	х	<b>✓</b>	✓	<b>✓</b>	3/4
	NV	VSSP			
Margaret Foster, Chair NWSSP	✓	✓	✓	<b>✓</b>	4/4
Neil Frow, Managing Director	✓	✓	✓	✓	4/4
Andy Butler, Director of Finance & Corporate Services	✓	✓	✓	✓	4/4
Peter Stephenson, Head of Finance & Business Development	<b>✓</b>	<b>✓</b>	✓	~	4/4
Roxann Davies, Corporate Services Manager	✓	✓	✓		3/3
Carly Wilce Interim Corporate Services Manager				<b>✓</b>	1/1
NWSSP Secretariat	✓	✓	✓	✓	4/4
Ve	lindre Unive	ersity NHS T	rust		
Mark Osland, Director of Finance	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	<b>✓</b>	4/4
Lauren Fear Director of Corporate Governance	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	4/4

The Audit Committee met formally on four occasions during the year with the majority of members attending regularly and all meetings were quorate. An Audit Committee Highlight Report is reported to the Partnership Committee, after each Audit Committee meeting.

# 2.4 Reviewing Effectiveness of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee completes an annual committee effectiveness survey evaluating the performance and effectiveness of:

- the Audit Committee members and Chair;
- the quality of the reports presented to Committee; and
- the effectiveness of the Committee secretariat.

The survey questionnaire comprises self-assessment questions intended to assist the Committee in assessing their effectiveness with a view to identifying potential areas for development going forward. A survey undertaken during July 2020, had an 86% response rate (13 responses received) and identified the following:

- Very positive responses received from participants in regard to the Chairing of the Committee;
- The atmosphere at meetings is conducive to open and productive debate;
- All members and attendees' behaviour is courteous and professional;
- The majority of participants have found having virtual meetings a positive experience;
- Members agree the Committee meets sufficiently frequently to deal with planned matters and enough time is allowed for questions and discussions;
- All respondents were in agreement that the Committee is provided with sufficient authority and resources in order to perform its role effectively; and
- The vast majority of responses indicated that the reports received by the Audit Committee are timely and have the right format and content, which enables the Committee to enhance its internal control and risk management responsibilities.

# 2.5 Sub-Groups and Advisory Groups

The Partnership Committee is supported by three advisory groups:

#### Welsh Risk Pool Committee

- Reimburse losses over £25,000 incurred by Welsh NHS bodies arising out of negligence;
- o Provide oversight of the GP Indemnity Scheme;
- Funded through the NHS Wales Healthcare budget;
- Oversees the work and expenditure of the Welsh Risk Pool;
   and
- Helps promote best clinical practice and lessons learnt from clinical incidents.

# • Evidence-Based Procurement Board (this did not meet regularly during the year as the focus was on PPE)

- Advisory group to promote wider liaison across NHS Wales;
- Includes representatives of various disciplines across NHS Wales and relevant research bodies;
- Helps inform and develop a value and evidence-based procurement process for medical consumables and devices for NHS Wales.

# Local Partnership Forum (LPF)

 Formal mechanism for consultation and engagement between NWSSP and the relevant Trade Unions. The LPF facilitates an open forum in which parties can engage with each other to inform debate and seek to agree local priorities on workforce and health service issues.

# 2.6 Senior Leadership Team (SLT)

The Managing Director leads the SLT and reports to the Chair of the Partnership Committee on the overall performance of NWSSP. The Managing Director is the designated Accountable Officer for Shared Services and is accountable, through the leadership of the Senior Leadership Team, for:

- The performance and delivery of NWSSP through the preparation of the annually updated Integrated Medium-Term Plan (IMTP) based on the policies and strategy set by the Committee and the preparation of Service Improvement plans;
- Leading the SLT to deliver the IMTP and Service Improvement Plans;
- Establishing an appropriate Scheme of Delegation for the SLT; and
- Ensuring that adequate internal controls and procedures are in place to ensure that delegated functions are exercised properly and prudently.

The SLT is responsible for determining NWSSP policy, setting the strategic direction and aims to ensure that there is effective internal control, and ensuring high standards of governance and behaviour. In addition, the SLT is responsible for ensuring that NWSSP is responsive to the needs of Health Boards and Trusts.

#### The SLT comprises:

Figure 7 - Composition of the SLT at NWSSP during 2020/2021

Name	Designation
Neil Frow	Managing Director
Andy Butler	Director of Finance and Corporate
	Services
Gareth Hardacre	Director of Workforce,
	Organisational Development and
	Employment Services
Jonathan Irvine	Director of Procurement Services
Paul Thomas**	Director of Employment Services
Simon Cookson	Director of Audit and Assurance
Mark Harris*	Director of Legal and Risk Services
Andrew Evans*	Director of Primary Care Services
Neil Davies	Director of Specialist Estates
Professor Malcolm Lewis OBE	Medical Director

,	Director of Planning, Performance & Informatics
Alwyn Hockin	Trade Union Representative

- Mark Harris, Director of Legal & Risk Services, and Andrew Evans, Director of Primary Care Services, both commenced in post on 1 April 2020.
- Paul Thomas, Director of Employment Services, formally retired at the end of October 2020. Gareth Hardacre, Director of Workforce and Organisational Development took on the additional responsibility for Employment Services at this point.
- Alison Ramsey was formally appointed as NWSSP's first Director of Planning, Performance, and Informatics in November 2020.

Since the start of March 2020, the SLT has been supported by a Planning and Response Group to meet the challenges arising from the COVID-19 outbreak. In addition to the core members of the SLT, the Planning and Response Group includes representation from Trade Unions, Communications, the Surgical Materials Testing Laboratory, and a number of Deputy Directors to provide an operational perspective. All decisions taken by the Group are recorded on an Issues and Decisions Log, and the Group meets regularly over TEAMs. The Group was temporarily stood down in June 2020, as the initial impact of COVID-19 declined, but was stood back up in November as the effects of the 2<sup>nd</sup> wave of the disease became more evident.

#### 3. THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of NWSSP. Therefore, it can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks, evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact they would have, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in NWSSP for the year ending 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the Trust Annual Report and Accounts.

#### 3.1 External Audit

NWSSP's external auditors are Audit Wales. The Audit Committee has worked constructively with Audit Wales and the areas examined in the 2020/21 financial year included:

- Position Statements (to every meeting);
- NWSSP Nationally Hosted NHS IT Systems Assurance Report 2019-20;
- Management Letter 2019/20;
- Review of PPE procurement; and
- Assurance Arrangements 2020/21.

The work of external audit is monitored by the Audit Committee through regular progress reports. Their work is considered timely and professional. The recommendations made are relevant and helpful in our overall assurance and governance arrangements and in minimising risk. There are clear and open relationships with officers and the reports produced are comprehensive and well presented.

In addition to internal NWSSP issues, the Audit Committee has been kept appraised by our external auditors of developments across NHS Wales and elsewhere in the public sector. These discussions have been helpful in extending the Audit Committee's awareness of the wider context of our work.

#### 3.2 Internal Audit

The Audit Committee regularly reviewed and considered the work and findings of the internal audit team. The Director of Audit and Assurance and the relevant Heads of Internal Audit attend meetings to discuss their work and present their findings. The Audit Committee are satisfied with the liaison and coordination between the external and internal auditors.

Quarterly returns providing assurance on any audit areas assessed as having "no assurance" or "limited assurance" were issued to Welsh Government in accordance with the instruction received from Dr Andrew Goodall, Chief Executive NHS Wales/Director General in July 2016. During 2020/21 no internal audit reports were rated as limited or no assurance.

For both internal and external audit, the Audit Committee have ensured that management actions agreed in response to reported weaknesses were implemented in a timely manner. Any planned revisions to agreed timescales for implementation of action plans requires Audit Committee approval. A separate report on the position with implementation of audit recommendations is monitored at each Audit Committee and is also taken for action at each monthly meeting of the SLT.

Reports were timely and enabled the Audit Committee to understand operational and financial risks. In addition, the internal auditors have provided valuable benchmarking information relating to best practice across NHS Wales.

#### 3.3 Counter Fraud

The work of the Local Counter Fraud Services is undertaken to help reduce and maintain the incidence of fraud (and/or corruption) within NWSSP to an absolute minimum.

Regular reports were received by the Audit Committee to monitor progress against the agreed Counter Fraud Plan, including the following reports:

- Progress Update at each meeting
- Annual Report 2019-20
- Counter Fraud Work Plan 2020-21
- Counter Fraud Self Review Tool Submission 2019-20

As part of its work, Counter Fraud has a regular annual programme of raising fraud awareness for which a number of days are then allocated and included as part of an agreed Work-Plan which is signed off by the Director of Finance and Corporate Services annually.

As part of that planned area of work, regular fraud awareness sessions are arranged and then held with various staff groups at which details on how and to who fraud can be reported are outlined. During 2020/21, these sessions have been provided virtually.

In addition to this and in an attempt to promote an Anti-Fraud Culture within NWSSP, a quarterly newsletter is produced which is available to all staff on the intranet and all successful prosecutions are publicised in order to obtain the maximum deterrent effect.

# 3.4 Integrated Governance

The Audit Committee is responsible for the maintenance and effective system of integrated governance. It has maintained oversight of the whole process by seeking specific reports on assurance, which include:

- The Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan arising from the 2019-20 Internal Audit self-assessment;
- Tracking of Audit Recommendations;
- Corporate Risk Register;
- Directorate Assurance Maps; and
- Governance Matters report on single tender actions, declarations of interest, gifts and hospitality received and declined.

During 2020/21, the Audit Committee reported any areas of concern to the Partnership Committee and played a proactive role in communicating suggested amendments to governance procedures and the Corporate Risk Register.

#### 3.5 Quality

During 2020/21, the Partnership Committee has given attention to assuring the quality of services by including a section on "Quality, Safety and Patient Experience" as one of the core considerations on the committee report template when drafting reports for Partnership Committee meetings. As mentioned earlier in this report, the Partnership Committee approved the establishment of a NWSSP Quality and Safety Committee at its September 2020 meeting, and this is due to meet for the first time in 2021/22.

In addition, quality of service provision is a core feature of the discussions undertaken between NWSSP and the Health Boards and Trusts during quarterly review meetings with the relevant Directors.

Procurement Services maintains certification to a number of international and national standards including ISO 9001 Quality Management, BS ISO 45001 Occupational Health & Safety and Customer Service Excellence. The

Regional Stores are also accredited to the food hygiene STS Code of Practice & Technical Standard for the Public Sector. In January 2021 our certifications were extended to include our new IP5 Newport Store with a successful audit against the ISO 9001 Quality Management Standard and BS ISO 45001 Occupational Health & Safety Standard. Also achieving transition from OHSAS 18001 to the international standard ISO 45001.

In January 2021 our independent audit against the Customer Service Excellence standard confirmed ongoing compliance and identified 5 areas of exceptional 'Compliance Plus'. Our Quality Plan includes objectives that will see us utilise these recognised Standards to standardise practice across our logistics and materials management functions, building on the foundations already created and supporting our plans for service development and modernisation.'

# 3.6 Looking Ahead

As a result of its work during the year the Audit Committee is satisfied that NWSSP has appropriate and robust internal controls in place and that the systems of governance incorporated in the Standing Orders are fully embedded within the Organisation.

Looking forward to 2021-22 the Audit Committee will continue to explore the financial, management, governance and quality issues that are an essential component of the success of NWSSP.

Specifically, the Audit Committee will:

- Continue to examine the governance and internal controls of NWSSP;
- Monitor closely risks faced by NWSSP and also by its major providers;
- Work closely with the Chairs of Audit Committee group on issues arising from financial governance matters affecting NHS Wales and the broader public sector community;
- Work closely with external and internal auditors on issues arising from both the current and future agenda for NWSSP;
- Ensure the Partnership Committee is kept aware of its work including both positive and adverse developments; and
- Request and review a number of deep dives into specific areas to ensure that it provides adequate assurance to both the Audit Committee and the Partnership Committee.

#### 4. CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

As previously highlighted the need to plan and respond to the COVID-19 pandemic presented a number of challenges to the organisation. A number of new and emerging risks were identified. Whilst the organisation did have a major incident and business continuity plan in place, as required by the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, the scale and impact of the pandemic has been unprecedented. Significant action has been taken at a national and local level to prepare and respond to the likely impact on the organisation

and population. This has also involved working in partnership on the multiagency response as a key member of the Strategic Co-ordination Group. There does remain a level of uncertainty about the overall impact this will have on the immediate and longer-term delivery of services by the organisation, although there is confidence that all appropriate action is being taken, and all services have been sustained thus far.

The organisation continues to work closely with a wide range of partners, including the Welsh Government as it continues with its response, and planning into the recovery phase. It will be necessary to ensure this is underpinned by robust risk management arrangements and the ability to identify, assess and mitigate risks which may impact on the ability of the organisation to achieve their strategic objectives.

The identified risks are recorded in a separate COVID-19 Risk Register which has been reported primarily to the Planning and Response Group, but also each and every meeting of the Senior Leadership Team, the Shared Services Partnership Committee, and the Audit Committee. There are currently no red-rated COVID risks.

In addition to the risks arising as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic there are other risks facing the organisation. The organisations risk profile relating to non-COVID-19 risks has included three red-rated risks in the 2020/21 financial year as follows:

- Plans for the replacement of the NHAIS system to allow payments to be made to GPs;
- The need to develop an in-house system for the payment of Opticians; and
- The risks arising from a no-deal BREXIT which has been replaced by the implications, particularly on the supply chain, of the deal agreed between the UK and the EU in December 2020.

As at March 2021, only the first of the above risks is still classified as a redrated risk and this should disappear from the Corporate Risk Register when the replacement system goes live in the summer of 2021.

The Shared Services Partnership Committee has overall responsibility and authority for NWSSP's Risk Management programme through the receipt and evaluation of reports indicating the status and progress of risk management activities.

The Lead Director for risk is the Director of Finance and Corporate Services who is responsible for establishing the policy framework and systems and processes needed for the management of risks within the organisation.

The Trust has an approved strategy for risk management and NWSSP has a risk management protocol in line with its host's strategy providing a clear systematic approach to the management of risk within NWSSP. The Risk Protocol was re-approved by the SLT in January 2020, and the Audit Committee in April 2020.

NWSSP seeks to integrate risk management processes so that it is not seen as a separate function but rather an integral part of the day-to-day management activities of the organisation including financial, health and safety and environmental functions.

The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed monthly by the SLT who ensure that key risks are aligned to delivery and are considered and scrutinised by the SLT as a whole. The register is divided into two sections as follows:

- Risks for Action this includes all risks where further action is required to achieve the target score. The focus of attention for these risks should be on ensuring timely completion of required actions; and
- Risks for Monitoring this is for risks that have achieved their target score, but which need to remain on the Corporate Risk Register due to their potential impact on the organisation as a whole. For these risks the focus is on monitoring both any changes in the nature of the risk (e.g. due to external environmental changes) and on ensuring that existing controls and actions remain effective (e.g. through assurance mapping).

It is the responsibility of each Director and Head of Service to ensure that risk is addressed within each of the locations relevant to their Directorates. It is also important that an effective feedback mechanism operates across NWSSP so that frontline risks are escalated to the attention of Directors.

Each Director is required to provide a regular update on the status of their directorate specific risk registers during quarterly review meetings with the Managing Director. All risks categorised as being red within individual directorate registers trigger an automatic referral for review by the SLT, and if deemed appropriate the risk is added to the NWSSP Corporate Risk Register.

Assurance maps are updated at least annually for each of the directorates to provide a view on how the key operational, or business-as-usual risks are being mitigated. The Audit Committee review all assurance maps annually.

A Risk Appetite statement has also been documented and approved by the Audit Committee. This covers nine specific aspects of NWSSP activity with a separate appetite score for each. The operationalisation of the risk appetite is through the target scores in the corporate and directorate risk registers. The Risk Appetite was reviewed again by the SLT in January 2020 to ensure that it remains appropriate and was also presented to the Audit Committee in April 2020.

NWSSP's approach to risk management therefore ensures that:

Leadership is given to the risk management process;

- Staff are trained on how to identify and manage risk;
- Risks are identified, assessed, and prioritised ensuring that appropriate mitigating actions are outlined on the risk register;
- The effectiveness of key controls is regularly assured; and
- There is full compliance with the Orange Book on Management of Risk.

#### 5. THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

NWSSP's commitment to the principle that risk is managed effectively means a continued focus to ensure that:

- There is compliance with legislative requirements where noncompliance would pose a serious risk;
- All sources and consequences of risk are identified, and risks are assessed and either eliminated or minimised; information concerning risk is shared with staff across NWSSP and with Partner organisations through the Partnership Committee and the Audit Committee;
- Damage and injuries are minimised, and people health and wellbeing is optimised; and
- Lessons are learnt from compliments, incidents, and claims in order to share best practice and reduce the likelihood of reoccurrence.

# **5.1 Corporate Risk Framework**

The detailed procedures for the management of corporate risk have been outlined above. Generally, to mitigate against potential risks concerning governance, NWSSP is proactive in reviewing its governance procedures and ensuring that risk management is embedded throughout its activities, including:

- NWSSP is governed by Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions which are reviewed on an annual basis;
- The Partnership Committee and Audit Committee both have forward work plans for committee business which provide an assurance framework for compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements;
- The effectiveness of governance structures is regularly reviewed including through Committee self-effectiveness surveys;
- The front cover pro-forma for reports for Committees includes a summary impact analysis section to be completed prior to submission. This provides a summary of potential implications relating to equality and diversity, legal implications, quality, safety and patient experience, risks and assurance, Wellbeing of Future Generations, Health and Care Standards and workforce;
- The Service Level Agreements in place with the Health Boards and NHS Trusts set out the operational arrangements for NWSSP's services to them and are reviewed on an annual basis;
- NWSSP are proactive in completing the Welsh Government's Health and Care Standards framework and ensure that Theme 2 Safe Care

- provides a clear picture of NWSSP's approach to health, safety and risk management; and
- The responsibilities of Directors are reviewed at annual Performance and Development Reviews (PADRs).

#### **5.2 Policies and Procedures**

NWSSP follows the policies and procedures of the Trust as the host organisation. In addition, a number of workforce policies have been developed and promulgated on a consistent all-Wales basis through the Welsh Partnership Forum and these apply to all staff within NWSSP.

All staff are aware of and have access to the internal Intranet where the policies and procedures are available. In a number of instances supplementary guidance has been provided. The Trust ensures that NWSSP have access to all of the Trust's policies and procedures and that any amendments to the policies are made known as they are agreed. NWSSP participate in the development and revision of workforce policies and procedures with the host organisation and has established procedures for staff consultation.

The Partnership Committee will where appropriate develop its own protocols or amend policies if applicable to the business functions of NWSSP. The Managing Director and other designated officers of NWSSP are included on the Trust Scheme of Delegation.

During the year, the need to respond urgently to meet the unprecedented demand for Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and other medical devices and consumables, required significant amendment to the existing Scheme of Delegation that forms part of the Standing Orders for NWSSP. It was initially agreed on 18 March 2020 to increase the delegated authorisation limits for the Chair and Managing Director for COVID 19 expenditure to £2M. This was subsequently increased to £5M from 30 March 2020. However, contracts and orders for COVID expenditure more than £5M still require approval of the Velindre Trust Board, which for expedience may need to be through the existing mechanism of Chair's action. Welsh Government approval is still required on all orders over £1m or advanced payments worth 25% or more of the contract value. The Trust Board agreed to extend these limits to 31 March 2021, and this has since been further extended until 30 June 2021.

Most contracts awarded for PPE during the year were covered by the current Public Contracts Regulations 2015, which provides an option to direct award contracts to companies due to extreme urgency under regulation 32(2)(c). COVID-19 falls under this clause exception, and use was therefore made of this to procure PPE and related equipment.

Audit Wales has recently undertaken a review of the procurement and supply of PPE during the pandemic. The report is generally very positive but includes the finding that "Shared Services did not meet legal requirements under emergency procurement rules to publish details of all

contracts within 30 days. The High Court found the UK Government had acted unlawfully by similarly not publishing details of its contracts for PPE." This matter has now been addressed.

#### **5.3 Information Governance**

NWSSP has established arrangements for Information Governance to ensure that information is managed in line with the relevant ethical law and legislation, applicable regulations and takes guidance, when required from the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO). This includes established laws including Data Protection Legislation, Common Law Duty of Confidentiality, the Human Rights Act, the Caldicott Report and specific Records Management Principles. The implementation of the General Data Protection Regulations in May 2018 increased the responsibilities to ensure that the data that NWSSP collects, and its subsequent processing, is for compatible purposes, and it remains secure and confidential whilst in its custody.

The Director of Finance and Corporate Services is the designated Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) in relation to Information Governance for NWSSP. NWSSP has an Information Governance Manager who has the objective of facilitating the effective use of controls and mechanisms to ensure that staff comply with Information Governance fundamental principles and procedures. This work includes awareness by delivery of an online core skills training framework eLearning module on Information Governance, classroom based training (when possible) for identified high risk staff groups, developing and reviewing policies and protocols to safeguard information, and advising on and investigating Information Governance breaches reported on the Datix incident reporting system.

The Information Governance Manager is responsible for the continuing delivery of an enhanced culture of confidentiality. This includes the presence of a relevant section on the intranet and a dedicated contact point (via ActionPoint) for any requests for advice, training or work.

NWSSP has an Information Governance Steering Group (IGSG) that comprises representatives from each directorate who undertake the role of Information Asset Administrators for NWSSP. The IGSG discusses quarterly issues such as GDPR and Data Protection Legislation, the Freedom of Information Act, Information Asset Ownership, Information Governance Breaches, Records Management, training compliance, new guidance documentation and training materials, areas of concern and latest new information and law.

NWSSP has a suite of protocols and guidance documents used in training and awareness for all staff on the importance of confidentiality and to ensure that all areas are accounted for. These include email and password good practice guides, summarised protocols and general guidance for staff. There is also a documented Privacy Impact Assessment (or "Privacy by Design") process in place to ensure consideration of Information Governance principles during the early stages of new projects, processes or work streams proposing to use identifiable information in some form.

NWSSP has developed an Integrated Impact Assessment process to include broader legislative and regulatory assurance requirements, and the proforma includes the need to consider the impact of the protected characteristics (including race, gender and religion) on the various types of Information Governance protocols.

The Information Governance Manager attends various meetings including the Trust IG and IM&T Committee and the NHS Wales Information Governance Management Advisory Group (IGMAG) hosted by NHS Wales Informatics, attended by all NHS Wales Health Bodies.

An annual report is produced on Information Governance within NWSSP. This was submitted to the SLT in June 2020.

#### 5.4 Counter Fraud

Counter Fraud support is incorporated within the hosting agreement with the Trust. Under this agreement, local Counter Fraud Services are provided to NWSSP by Cardiff and Vale UHB. The impact of the pandemic and the specific redeployment and later sickness absence of the Local Counter Fraud Specialist for NWSSP has resulted in a reduction in service provision during the year such that only 58 of the contracted 75 days were delivered.

In addition, NWSSP lead the NHS Wales Counter Fraud Steering Group (CFSG), facilitated by Welsh Government, which works in collaboration with the NHS Counter Fraud Authority in NHS England to develop and strengthen counter fraud services across NHS Wales. The Director of Finance and Corporate Services chairs the group.

The Group has a documented NHS Fighting Fraud Strategy for Wales with an accompanying action plan which is reviewed at the quarterly meetings of the CFSG. Work has also been undertaken to improve and enhance the quarterly reporting of both the Local Counter Fraud Specialists, and the Counter Fraud Services Wales Team. Reports are submitted to the meetings of the CFSG and are then shared with both Welsh Government and the Directors of Finance Group for NHS Wales.

During 2020/21 the Group received and considered a report "Raising our Game" which was produced by Audit Wales and which assessed the counter-fraud arrangements in place across NHS Wales and both local and central government. While the findings of the review were largely positive, there were some recommendations for all sectors, and actions to respond to these recommendations have been incorporated into a combined action plan which also includes the required actions from the Fighting Fraud Strategy.

#### 5.5 Internal Audit

The NWSSP hosting agreement provides that the Partnership Committee will establish an effective internal audit as a key source of its internal assurance arrangements, in accordance with the Public Internal Auditing Standards.

Accordingly for NWSSP, an internal audit strategy has been approved by the Audit Committee which provides coverage across NWSSP functions and processes sufficient to assure the Managing Director of Shared Services and in turn the Partnership Committee and the Trust as host organisation, on the framework of internal control operating within NWSSP.

The delivery of the audit plan for NWSSP culminates in the provision of a Head of Internal Audit opinion on the governance, risk and control processes operating within NWSSP. The opinion forms a key source of assurance for the Managing Director when reporting to the Partnership Committee and partner organisations.

# **5.6 Integrated Medium-Term Plan (IMTP)**

The pandemic has resulted in revised guidance from Welsh Government which has required NHS organisations to focus on an annual plan rather than an Integrated Medium-Term Plan covering three years. NWSSP has complied with this requirement but has also maintained a longer-term approach with a plan for 2021/22 that includes a forward look to 2022/24.

The Plan is approved by the Partnership Committee and performance against the plan is monitored throughout the year. Significant work has been undertaken to revise the performance framework to ensure that it is fully integrated with the key priorities in the plan. The creation of a new post of Director of Planning, Performance and Informatics in November 2020 provides added and strategic impetus to this agenda and also ensures that the planning and performance work streams are effectively coordinated. The vast majority of performance targets for 2020/21 were achieved and progress against each of these is reported to the Senior Leadership Team and the Partnership Committee. It is anticipated there will be a regular reporting to Welsh Government requirement on progress against the plan as there was during 2019/20.

The planning process includes substantial engagement with key stakeholders, both internally and across NHS Wales and the wider public sector, in both virtual team events and on a one-to-one basis. The plan has been discussed with Welsh Government colleagues in early March 2021 and they were extremely complimentary on both the content and presentation, and particularly the plan on a page section.

#### 5.7 Health and Care Standards for NHS Wales

The Standards for Health Service in Wales provide a framework for consistent standards of practice and delivery across the NHS in Wales, and for continuous improvement. In accordance with the programme of internal audits, the process is tested and is an integral part of the organisation's assurance framework process.

The Health and Care Standards Framework comprises seven main themes and sub criteria against which NHS bodies need to demonstrate compliance.



The process for undertaking the annual self-assessments is:

- The Corporate Services Manager undertakes an initial evaluation;
- A draft self-assessment is then presented to the SLT for discussion and further consultation is undertaken at Directorate level;
- Feedback from each Directorate is reviewed and incorporated into the self-assessment pro-forma and is then re-presented to SLT for final approval
- Once approved, it is presented to the Partnership Committee, Audit Committee and the Trust Quality and Safety Committee.

Each theme is assessed and given an overall self-assessment rating of between 1 and 5. As a largely non-clinical service provider, not all of the sub-criteria are applicable.

A summary of the self-assessment ratings is outlined below:

<u>Figure 9 – Self- Assessments Rating Against the Health and Care Standards</u> 2020/2021

Theme Executive Lead		2020/21 Self- Assessment Rating	2019/20 Self- Assessment Rating
Governance, Leadership and Accountability	Senior Management Team	4	4
Staying Healthy	Director of Workforce and Organisational Development	4	4
Safe Care	Director of Finance and Corporate Services	4	4

Theme	Executive Lead	2020/21 Self- Assessment Rating	2019/20 Self- Assessment Rating
	Director of Specialist Estates		
Effective Care Senior Management Team		4	4
Dignified Care Not applicable		Not applicable	Not applicable
Timely Care	Not applicable	Not applicable	Not applicable
Individual Care	Senior Management Team	4	4
Staff and Director of		4	4
Resources	Workforce and Organisational Development		

The overall rating against the mandatory Governance, Leadership and accountability module and the seven themes within the Health and Care Standards reflects NWSSP's overall compliance against the standards and has been rated as a 4 as outlined below:

<u>Figure 10 – NWSSP's Overall Self-Assessment Score Health and Care</u> Standards 2020/2021

Assessment Level	We do not yet have a clear, agreed understanding of where we are (or how we are doing) and what / where we need to improve	We are aware of the improvement s that need to be made and have prioritised them, but are not yet able to demonstrate meaningful action	We are developing plans and processes and can demonstrate progress with some of our key areas for improvement	We have well developed plans and processes can demonstrate sustainable improvement throughout the organisation / business	We can demonstrate sustained good practice and innovation that is shared throughout the organisations / business, and which others can
Rating		detion		✓	learn from

#### **6. MANDATORY DISCLOSURES**

In addition to the need to report against delivery of the Standards for Health Services in Wales, NWSSP is also required to report that arrangements are in place to manage and respond to the following governance issues:

# 6.1 Equality, Diversity and Human Rights

NWSSP is committed to eliminating discrimination, valuing diversity and promoting inclusion and equality of opportunity in everything it does. NWSSP's priority is to develop a culture that values each person for the contribution they can make to the services provided for NHS Wales. As a non-statutory hosted organisation within the Trust, NWSSP is required to adhere to the Trust Equality and Diversity Policy, Strategic Equality Plan and Objectives, which set out the Trust's commitment and legislative requirements to promote inclusion.

NWSSP's Corporate Services Manager chaired the NHS Wales Equality Leadership Group (ELG), who work in partnership with colleagues across NHS Wales and the wider public sector, to collaborate on events, facilitate workshops, deliver and undertake training sessions, issue communications and articles relating to equality, diversity and inclusion, together with the promotion of dignity and respect for all. NWSSP is proactive in supporting NHS Wales organisations with completion of their submission for all-Wales services, such as Procurement and Recruitment.

The process for undertaking Equality Integrated Impact Assessments (EQIIA) has matured, and considers the needs of the protected characteristics identified under the Equality Act 2010, the Public Sector Equality Duty in Wales and the Human Rights Act 1998, whilst recognising the potential impacts from key enablers such as Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, incorporating Environmental Sustainability, Modern Slavery Act 2015 incorporating Ethical Employment in Supply Chains Code of Practice 2017, Welsh Language, Information Governance and Health and Safety.

With effect from March 31<sup>st</sup>, 2021, the Socio-Economic Duty places a legal responsibility on NHS bodies when they are taking strategic decisions to have due regard to the need to reduce the inequalities of outcome resulting from socio-economic disadvantage. A presentation on this topic was given by two lawyers from our Legal & Risk Directorate to the April 2021 Informal Senior Leadership Team.

Personal data in relation to equality and diversity is captured on the Electronic Staff Record (ESR) system and staff are responsible for updating their own personal records using the Electronic Staff Record Self-Service. This includes ethnicity; nationality, country of birth, religious belief, sexual orientation and Welsh language competencies. The NHS Jobs All-Wales recruitment service, run by NWSSP adheres to all of the practices and principles in accordance with the Equality Act and quality checks the adverts and supporting information to ensure no discriminatory elements are present.

NWSSP has a statutory and mandatory induction programme for its workforce, including the NHS Wales "Treat Me Fairly" e-learning module, which forms part of a national training package and the statistical data

captured for NWSSP completion contributes to the overall figure for NHS Wales. A Core Skills for Managers Training Programme is provided, and the Managing Conflict module includes an awareness session on Dignity at Work.

# **6.2 Welsh Language**

NWSSP is committed to ensuring that the Welsh and English languages are treated equally in the services provided to the public and NHS partner organisations in Wales. This is in accordance with the current Trust Welsh Language Scheme, Welsh Language Act 1993, the Welsh Language Measure (Wales) 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards [No7.] Regulations 2018.

The work of NWSSP in relation to Welsh language delivery and performance is reported to the Welsh Government and the Welsh Language Commissioner within the Annual Performance Report. This work is largely undertaken by the Welsh Language Officer and a team of Translators.

These posts enable compliance with the current obligations under the Welsh Language Scheme and in meeting the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. This has significantly increased the demand for translation services in the following areas:

- Service Delivery Standards;
- Policy Making Standards;
- Operational Standards;
- Record Keeping Standards; and
- Supplementary Standards.

NWSSP has made significant progress in developing and growing its Welsh language services by successfully offering all staff the opportunity to learn Welsh at work. The NWSSP website is bilingual and there has been investment in the development of a candidate interface on the TRAC recruitment system. NWSSP also offer language services to other organisations and have delivered translation and other language services to Public Health Wales, HEIW, and NWIS over recent years.

An annual report on performance with Welsh Language services is also produced and was submitted to the SMT in October 2020 and to the SSPC in January 2021.

# **6.3 Handling Complaints and Concerns**

NWSSP is committed to the delivery of high-quality services to its customers. The NWSSP Issues and Complaints Management Protocol is reviewed annually. The Protocol aligns with the Velindre University NHS Trust Handling Concerns Policy, the Concerns, Complaints and Redress Arrangements (Wales) Regulations 2011 and Putting Things Right Guidance.

During 2020-21, 26 complaints were received, of which:

- 18 complaints responded to within 30 working days (69%); and
- 8 complaints responded to outside of 30 working days (31%).

As detailed above, only 69% of the complaints received were responded to within the 30-working day target. However, this is an increase in performance compared to 40% compliance during 2019-20, based on 30 complaints received. In addition, the performance in the timeliness of response increased significantly in the latter half of the year following a management restructure in the Employment Services Directorate.

Where responses were issued outside of the target, cases were particularly complex in nature and delays arose related to staff absence, specifically within Employment Services. However, in all instances holding letters were issued and/or telephone calls were made to the complainants explaining that NWSSP were still in the process of investigating the matters raised and that they would be provided with a substantive response as soon as the investigation had been concluded.

# **6.4 Freedom of Information Requests**

The Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) 2000 gives the UK public the right of access to a variety of information held by public bodies and provides commitment to greater openness and transparency in the public sector, especially for those who are accountable for decisions made on behalf of patients and service users.

#### Figure 12 – Freedom of Information Requests 2020-21

There were 113 requests received within NWSSP during 2020/21, some of these were redirected to other bodies for response but those received were mostly handled within the prescribed 20-day time limit for requests. 18 requests were answered slightly over the deadline for compliance, but this was due to the complexity of the information requested within those requests and the far-ranging input required by other parties to agree the information to be supplied.

#### **FOI Breakdown**

72 answered within the 20-day target

23 transferred out to another NHS body

18 responded to outside of the deadline

#### **6.5 Data Security and Governance**

In 2020/21, there were 34 information governance breaches reported within NWSSP; these included issues with mis-sending of email and records management. The majority of these were down to human error and despite education effectively provided to ensure awareness of confidentiality and effective breach reporting, unfortunately errors can happen.

Staff are encouraged to report all manner of confidentiality breaches regardless of whether they originate within the organisation or not as a concern. In 2020/21, 65 breaches were reported, of those 31 were incidents occurring outside NWSSP's control.

All breaches are recorded in the Datix risk management software, which was upgraded and relaunched as RLDatix in January 2020, and investigated in accordance with the Information Governance and Confidentiality Breach Reporting protocols, which comply with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). The protocols encourage staff to report those breaches that originate outside the organisation for recording purposes.

From this, the Information Governance Manager writes quarterly reports including relevant recommendations and any areas for improvement to minimise the possibility of further breaches. Members of the Information Governance Steering Group are required to report on any incidents in their areas to include lessons learned and any changes that have been made since an incident was reported.

There were no Information Governance breaches reported in 2020/21 that were assessed as being of a category serious enough to report to the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO) for further investigation.

# 6.6 ISO14001 - Environmental Management and Carbon Reduction

NWSSP is committed to managing its environmental impact, reducing its carbon footprint and integrating the sustainable development principle into day-to-day business. NWSSP successfully implemented ISO14001 as its Environmental Management System (EMS), in accordance with Welsh Government requirements and have successfully maintained certification since August 2014, through the operation of the Plan, Do, Check, Act model of continuous improvement.

Annual surveillance audits are undertaken to assess continued compliance with the Standard. The last external assessment was undertaken in August 2019 and further audits were delayed by the pandemic. The next audit is scheduled for the summer of 2021. The ISO14001:2015 Standard, places greater emphasis on protection of the environment, continuous improvement through a risk process based approach and commitment to top-down leadership, whilst managing the needs and expectations of interested parties and demonstrating sound environmental performance, through controlling the impact of activities, products or services on the environment. NWSSP is committed to environmental improvement and operates a comprehensive EMS in order to facilitate and achieve the Environmental Policy.

# **Carbon Footprint**

We committed to reducing our carbon footprint by implementing various environmental initiatives and efficiencies at our sites within the scope of our ISO14001:2015 certification. As part of our commitment to reduce our contribution to climate change, a target of 3% reduction in our carbon

emissions (year on year, from a baseline of carbon footprint established in 2016-17), was agreed and this was reflected within our Environmental Sustainability Objectives.

During 2020-21, we achieved our target and obtained a 16.25% reduction overall in CO2 emissions where it was possible to directly compare with the prior year. During 2020/21 NWSSP will develop its decarbonisation delivery plan in line with the national programme of work, which our Specialist Estates team is leading on.

Area	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	Target	Target Achieved
Electricity CO2e	11% reduction	18% reduction	11.5% reduction	27% reduction	15% Reduction	3% reduction	✓
Gas CO2e	13% increase	7% reduction	38% reduction	35% increase	31% Reduction	3% reduction	✓
Water M3	51% increase	9% reduction	6% increase	50% reduction	46% redcution	3% reduction	✓
Waste CO2e	62%	95%	89%	94.68%	Agile working	70%	
	recycled/recovered	recycled/recovered	recycled/recovered	recycled/recovered	implemented. Data	recycled/recovered	
					not not available for		
					the period		
Business Mileage Expenditure	6% reduction	15% reduction	11% increase	14% reduction	71% reduction	15% reduction by 2021	<b>✓</b>
Business Mileage	7% reduction	11% reduction	10% increase	19% reduction	75% reduction	15% reduction by 2021	✓
Overall Carbon Footprint	5.37% Increase	3.78% Reduction	11.32% Reduction	12.04% Reduction	16.25% Reduction		X

# **6.7 Business Continuity Planning/Emergency Preparedness**

When the likely impact of COVID-19 became apparent, NWSSP Business Continuity processes were immediately implemented. This included the establishment of a Planning and Response Group, comprising the Senior Leadership Team plus representatives from the Trade Unions, Surgical and Materials Testing Laboratory, Deputy Directors, and Communications. The Group met several times a week at the outset of the pandemic and decisions taken by the Group to strengthen business resilience included:

- Requiring all directorates to update their own business continuity plans and/or BCP action cards;
- Establishing sub-groups to focus on IT and on the safety and accessibility of our buildings;
- Ensuring that as many staff as possible were provided with laptops and VPNs to enable them to work remotely over 450 of each were issued to staff in the first few weeks of the pandemic;
- Increasing the number of softphones available so that staff were able to make and receive external calls from their laptops;
- Instructing NWIS to migrate all staff to Office365 which again increased the capacity of NWSSP staff to work remotely – over 1500 staff were migrated in a three-week period:
- Ensuring that social distancing measures were put into place including appropriate floor and wall signage, Perspex screens for reception areas, and a review of work settings using expert input from Specialist Estates;

- Increasing approval limits for senior staff to provide more flexibility in procuring critical equipment in very competitive and timepressured markets;
- Extending the opening hours of all NWSSP sites so that staff could work more flexibly and maintain social distancing;
- Discouraging staff from travelling to face-to-face meetings by moving all meetings on to Skype (and later Teams);
- Establishing the Finance Governance Committee to provide a speedy and comprehensive approval process for urgent procurement requests (and particularly PPE);
- Employing significant numbers of additional staff in Supply Chain and HCS to cope with the increased demand for PPE and the need to provide equipment to Primary Care Contractors and in Social Care settings;
- Overseeing the transfer of agency-contracted staff to bank contracts to maintain flexible capacity but with better value-for-money; and
- Introducing personal health risk assessments for all staff.

Documentation has been introduced and enhanced to ensure that staff are able to work safely and productively, whether working remotely from home or continuing to work in NWSSP and other NHS Wales locations.

In order to further safeguard and sustain staff welfare, a number of measures have been implemented. This has included the training of 23 Mental Health First Aiders across NWSSP who provide a point of contact for employees who are experiencing a mental health issue or emotional distress. In addition, the NWSSP Mental Health Support Group is a virtual online group open to all colleagues with a friendly, no pressure environment and provides a supporting community where other individuals facing similar struggles can come together to find support, resources, and self-help tools. During the year NWSSP signed an employer pledge with Time to Change Wales; the first national campaign to end stigma and discrimination faced by people with mental health problems, which is delivered by two of Wales' leading mental health charities, Hafal and Mind Cymru.

The business continuity arrangements instigated to respond to COVID were reviewed by Internal Audit in the third quarter of 2020/21. This was an advisory review which therefore included no formal audit opinion. The review focused on how directorates had engaged and complied with the corporate approach to business continuity and found that:

"NWSSP was able to adapt and build upon existing corporate and divisional business continuity arrangements to develop its COVID-19 pandemic response. This produced a number of positive outcomes. Good progress had been made across the board in terms of future preparedness and resilience. Management recognises that some key challenges remain and is taking action to address these."

Notwithstanding COVID-19, NWSSP is proactive in reviewing the capability of the organisation to continue to deliver products or services at acceptable predefined levels following a disruptive incident. NWSSP recognise its

contribution in supporting NHS Wales to be able to plan for and respond to a wide range of incidents and emergencies that could affect health or patient care, in accordance with requirement for NHS bodies to be classed as a Category 1 responders deemed as being at the core of the response to most emergencies under the Civil Contingencies Act (2004).

As a hosted organisation under the Trust, NWSSP is required to take note of their Business Continuity Management Policy and ensure that NWSSP has effective strategies in place for:

- People the loss of personnel due to sickness or pandemic;
- Premises denial of access to normal places of work;
- Information Management and Technology and communications/ICT equipment issues; and
- Suppliers internal and external to the organisation.

NWSSP is committed to ensuring that it meets all legal and regulatory requirements and has processes in place to identify, assess, and implement applicable legislation and regulation requirements related to the continuity of operations and the interests of key stakeholders.

NWSSP continues to work towards implementing the Cyber Security Framework in order to address the specific needs of the service. This is an ongoing plan covering the areas of Identify, Protect, Detect, Respond and Recover. NWSSP have already started a number of work streams including Information Workflows and Governance, Awareness and Training, Procurement of Professional Incident Response Capability, Protective Technology through the SIEM Procurement Project and Business Continuity Planning workshops across the whole of the whole of Shared Services. NWSSP have also recently implemented a robust new virtualised infrastructure based on the tenets of the framework in order to provide a safe and secure environment for NWSSP business systems.

# **6.8 UK Corporate Governance Code**

NWSSP operates within the scope of the Trust governance arrangements. The Trust undertook an assessment against the main principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code as they relate to an NHS public sector organisation in Wales. This assessment was informed by the Trust's assessment against the "Governance, Leadership and Accountability" theme of the Health and Care Standards undertaken by the Board. The Trust is clear that it is complying with the main principles of the Code, is following the spirit of the Code to good effect and is conducting its business openly and in line with the Code. The Board recognises that not all reporting elements of the Code are outlined in this Governance Statement but are reported more fully in the Trust's wider Annual Report. NWSSP have also completed the self-assessment on the "Governance, Leadership and Accountability" theme of the Health and Care Standards with a positive maturity rating of 4.

#### 6.9 NHS Pension Scheme

As an employer hosted by the Trust and as the Payroll function for NHS Wales, there are robust control measures in place to ensure that all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations for staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer's contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

#### 7. MANAGING DIRECTOR'S OVERALL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, and the Directors and Heads of Service within NWSSP who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework, and comments made by external auditors in their audit letter and other reports.

As Accountable Officer I have overall responsibility for risk management and report to the NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership Committee regarding the effectiveness of risk management across NWSSP. My advice to the Partnership Committee is informed by reports on internal controls received from all its committees and in particular the Audit Committee.

Each of the Committees have considered a range of reports relating to their areas of business during the last year, which have included a comprehensive range of internal audit and external audit reports and reports on professional standards from other regulatory bodies. The Committees have also considered and advised on areas for local and national strategic developments and a potential expansion of the services provided by NWSSP. Each Committee develops an annual report of its business and the areas that it has covered during the last year and these are reported in public to the Trust and Health Boards.

# **Internal Audit Opinion**

Internal audit provide me and the Partnership Committee through the Audit Committee with a flow of assurance on the system of internal control. I have commissioned a programme of audit work which has been delivered in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards by the Audit and Assurance function within NWSSP.

The scope of this work is agreed with the Audit Committee and is focussed on significant risk areas and local improvement priorities. The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on governance, risk management and control is a function of this risk-based audit programme and contributes to the picture of assurance available to the Board in reviewing effectiveness and supporting our drive for continuous improvement.

The programme has been impacted by the need to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic with some audits deferred, cancelled or curtailed as the organisation responded to the pandemic. The Head of Internal Audit is satisfied that there has been sufficient internal audit coverage during the reporting period in order to provide the Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion. In forming the Opinion, the Head of Internal Audit has considered the impact of the audits that have not been fully completed.

The Head of Internal Audit opinion for 2020/2021 was that the Partnership Committee can take **Reasonable Assurance** that arrangements to secure governance, risk management and internal control, within those areas under review, were suitably designed and applied effectively:

RATING	INDICATOR	DEFINITION
Reasonable assurance	- + Yellow	The Committee can take <b>reasonable assurance</b> that arrangements to secure governance, risk management and internal control, within those areas under review, are suitably designed and applied effectively. Some matters require management attention in control design or compliance with <b>low to moderate impact on residual risk</b> exposure until resolved.

In reaching this overarching opinion the Head of Internal Audit has identified that the assurance domains relevant to NWSSP have all been assessed as providing reasonable assurance. During the year, no internal audit reports were issued with a rating of limited or no assurance.

#### **Financial Control**

NWSSP was established by Welsh Government to provide a range of support services to the NHS in Wales. As Managing Director and Accountable Officer, I retain overall accountability in relation to the financial management of NWSSP and report to the Chair of the Partnership Committee.

#### **NWSSP Financial Control Overview**

There are four key elements to the Financial Control environment for NWSSP as follows:

Governance Procedures – As a hosted organisation NWSSP operates under the Governance Framework of the Trust. These procedures include the Standing Orders for the regulation of proceedings and business. The statutory requirements have been translated into day-to-day operating practice, and, together with the Scheme of Reservation and Delegation of Powers and Standing Financial Instructions (SFIs), provide the regulatory framework for the business conduct of the Trust. These arrangements are supported by detailed financial operating procedures covering the whole of the

Trust and also local procedures specific to NWSSP. During the current COVID-19 crisis the governance arrangements have been enhanced through the establishment of a Finance Governance Committee. This meets as and when required to consider and approve large scale and urgent requisitions. Membership of the Committee includes senior finance staff from NWSSP, the Velindre Director of Finance and an independent member of the Board, representatives from Counter Fraud, Accounts Payable and Legal and Risk Services. The Committee is chaired by the Director of Audit and Assurance Services, and Procurement colleagues attend the Committee to give background and context to specific requisitions.

- Budgets and Plan Objectives Clarity is provided to operational functions through approved objectives and annual budgets.
   Performance is measured against these during the year.
- Service Level Agreements (SLAs) NWSSP has SLAs in place with all customer organisations and with certain key suppliers. This ensures clarity of expectations in terms of service delivery, mutual obligations and an understanding of the key performance indicators. Annual review of the SLAs ensures that they remain current and take account of service developments.
- Reporting NWSSP has a broad range of financial and performance reports in place to ensure that the effectiveness of service provision and associated controls can be monitored, and remedial action taken as and when required.

Through this structure NWSSP has maintained effective financial control which has been reviewed and accepted as appropriate by both the Internal and External Auditors.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This Governance Statement indicates that NWSSP has continued to make progress and mature as an organisation during 2020/21 and that it is further developing and embedding good governance and appropriate controls throughout the organisation. NWSSP has received positive feedback from Internal Audit on the assurance framework and this, in conjunction with other sources of assurance, leads me to conclude that it has a robust system of control. However, there were three specific instances where controls have not operated as intended. These were:

 An overpayment of £900k to a former employee of a Health Board as part of an agreed settlement. Whilst the overpayment has been recovered in full, we immediately requested Internal Audit to undertake a review of the circumstances behind this error. They found that input accuracy checks were not currently being completed due to remote working and the absence of physical invoice batches for checking. This has been immediately rectified and additional

- checks implemented for all payments > £100k. The matter was fully reported to the Audit Committee.
- Audit Wales has recently undertaken a review of the procurement and supply of PPE during the pandemic. The report is generally very positive but includes the finding that "Shared Services did not meet legal requirements under emergency procurement rules to publish details of all contracts within 30 days. The High Court found the UK Government had acted unlawfully by similarly not publishing details of its contracts for PPE." This matter has now been addressed.
- During March 2021, a spate of actual and attempted frauds relating to change of bank account details were noted. These were sophisticated frauds which involved genuine supplier e-mail accounts being hacked which were then used to request changes to bank account details. Approximately £100k was paid out in total as a result of four separate frauds although £60k of these monies was instantly recovered. Controls have been further strengthened with bank mandate forms now being sent by post, and this appears to have thwarted any further attempts to defraud NWSSP through these means. Access to software has also been purchased that enables new account details to be matched to the supplier name.

As indicated throughout this statement, the need to plan and respond to the COVID-19 has had a significant impact on the organisation, wider NHS, and society as a whole. It has required a dynamic response which has presented a number of opportunities in addition to the risks. The need to respond and recover from the pandemic will be with the organisation and wider society as we enter 2021/22, and it is unlikely, and indeed undesirable, to go back to fully replicating the pre-pandemic ways of working. To this end, an Adapt and Future Change Group, chaired by the Director of Planning, Performance and Informatics, is tasked with setting out a roadmap to exit the pandemic which incorporates the lessons learned from it. The Adapt and Future Change Group is supported by the Building Managers' Group whose task has been to ensure the safety of all premises where NWSSP staff are employed, both during the pandemic and as we hopefully exit from it. As this work progresses, I will ensure our Governance Framework considers and responds to this need.

# Looking forward - for the period 2021/22:

I confirm that I am aware of my on-going responsibilities and accountability to you, to ensure compliance in all areas as outlined in the above statements continues to be discharged for the financial year 2021/22.

Signed by: Lesjm

Managing Director - NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership

Date: 01 July 2021